Minutes of the East Wisconsin Counties Railroad Consortium Meeting of November 13, 2024

East Wisconsin Counties Railroad Consortium Meeting was called to order by Chairman Thomas E. Winker on November 13, 2024, at approximately 10:00 a.m., at the Dodge County Administration Building, Administration Auditorium, 127 E. Oak Street, Juneau, Wisconsin.

The Consortium rose to say the Pledge of Allegiance.

Certification of Public Notice: Kelly Lepple certified that the notice of this meeting complies with all applicable requirements of Wisconsin's Open Meetings Law.

Present: Char Holtan and Darren W. Schroeder, Columbia County; Jeffrey Caine and Jim Mielke, Dodge County; John Zorn and Karen Madigan, Fond du Lac County; Dennis Mulder, Green Lake County; Tom Winker, Ozaukee County; Jon Kuhlow and Chuck Born, Sheboygan County; Jeff Schleif, Washington County; and Donald Nussbaum and Howard Miller, Winnebago County.

Excused: Charlie Wielgosh, Green Lake County; Shawn Rolland, Milwaukee County; Marty Wolf, Ozaukee Count; and, Robert Hartwig, Washington County.

Others Present: Ben Mohlke, WisDOT; Ken Lucht, WSOR; and Kelly Lepple, Dodge County Corporation Counsel Office.

Public Comment: None.

Approval of Draft Minutes of July 10, 2024: Motion by Schroeder/Zorn to approve the minutes of July 10, 2024. Motion carried.

Financial Report: Jeff Caine reported for the period ending October 31, 2024. The balance in the checkbook as of June 30, 2024, was 1,002.14. Deposits – 15,402.71, Expenditures – None, and Transfers – 15,402.42. Total EWCRC money on deposit in the Local Government Investment Pool as of September 30, 2024, is 1,405,993.94. The interest rate for September 2024 was 5.23%. There was discussion about Winnebago County's remaining balance of 5,000 for its 2023-member county contribution. Kelly Lepple reported that she was in contact with Ethan Hollenberger from Winnebago County and the remaining 5,000 will be paid by the end of November. Motion by Caine/Mulder to approve the Financial Report as read. Motion carried.

Report of WisDOT Railroads and Harbors: Ben Mohlke reported that the 2024 WisDOT Annual Freight Railroad Conference was held on Tuesday, November 12, 2024, at the Marriott Conference Center located in Middleton, Wisconsin. Ben Mohlke reported on the topics that were discussed at the Freight Railroad Conference and the presenters. Ben Mohlke stated that he will be posting the Conference presentations online on the WisDOT website for anyone wishing to view them.

Ben Mohlke gave a brief history of the Freight Advisory Committee. WisDOT established the Freight Advisory Committee to help inform the department on issues that impact freight mobility and to provide a voice for the freight sector on the development of freight-related policies, processes and projects. The Freight Advisory Committee includes representatives from sectors including industry, agriculture, logistics, warehousing, economic development and transportation.

Merrimack Bridge: Ken Lucht and Ben Mohlke reported the following: In 2014, the Merrimack Bridge was rated at 268,000-lb. carload capacity. Due to the deterioration of the bridge and the resulting weight limitations and speed restrictions, WisDOT and WSOR completed multiple studies to determine restoration options for the bridge in 2016. WisDOT and WSOR subsequently determined they would proceed with rehabilitation of the bridge in three phases. Phase I of the Merrimac Bridge Rehabilitation and Span Replacement Project was completed in 2018 and included emergency repairs on one span to improve immediate structural requirements and design engineering for Phase II rehabilitation work. Phase II was completed in May of 2021 and included replacement of the steel components of nine of the bridge spans. Phase III of the project was selected in 2020 for a U.S. DOT Infrastructure for Rebuilding America (INFRA) grant in the amount of \$6,750,000. Final design was completed in the summer of 2022. In November of 2022, Michels Construction was awarded the project as lowest bidder. In 2023, Phase III construction began with replacing numerous spans. In 2024, more spans were replaced with substructure rehabilitation. In the first quarter of 2025, the Bridge work will be completed.

Freight Rail Preservation Program: Ken Lucht asked for an update on the proposed revisions of the Freight Rail Preservation Program Grant Application Instructions. Ben Mohlke stated that they are still reviewing the proposed revisions of the Freight Rail Preservation Program Grant Application Instructions.

Report of WSOR: Ken Lucht reported the following: In 2024, WSOR installed approximately 42,000 ties throughout its different subdivisions, replaced approximately 17 at grade crossings, and completed numerous bridge projects. WSOR is working with the City of Lodi in Columbia County on the Glenview Park Underpass which will allow pedestrian and stormwater access through the railroad right-of-way. WSOR built a new 15,000 square foot locomotive shop in Janesville. WSOR is working with the City of Oshkosh to petition the Office of Commissioner of Railroads to create a new crossing over Compass Way in the Industrial Park. In 2025, Lycon will be starting construction of a new redi mix concrete plant. In order for Lycon to receive rail services, a new spur and crossing would need to be installed on Compass Way. Ken Lucht stated that he recently attended the Town of Plymouth board meeting regarding the permanent closure of Short Cut Road. The Board unanimously approved the closure and by the end of March 2025, that entire crossing will be closed to all traffic. WSOR was presented with a President's Safety Award from the American Short Line and Regional Railroad Association for going 250,000-man hours without a single injury. Ken Lucht will reach out to Charter Steel to set up a date and time for the Consortium to come and tour the facility.

Date, time, and place of next meeting (January 8, 2025, or March 12, 2025): The next regular EWCRC meeting will be held on January 8, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. Dodge County will host the meeting, to be held at the Dodge County Administration Building, located in Juneau, Wisconsin.

Motion by Schleif/Caine to adjourn. Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 11:04 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

John Zorn, Secretary CHAIR

Disclaimer: These are draft minutes. These draft minutes may be approved, amended, or corrected at the next meeting of the East Wisconsin Counties Railroad Consortium.